
 

Final Meeting Minutes 
Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) Meeting 

Sunflower Army Ammunition Plant (SFAAP) 
Wednesday March 6, 2002 

 
 

1. The twenty-fifth RAB meeting was held on Wednesday, March 6, 2002, at the DeSoto Community 
Center. 

 
2. Copies of the agenda and sign-in sheets are attached. 
 
3. Mr. Tony Spaar, the Commander’s Representative at SFAAP, called the meeting to order at 

approximately 6:10 pm.  Introductions were made around the room. 
 
4. Mr. Tony Spaar stated that the proposed changes for the RAB charter had been sent out to the RAB 

members.  Mr. Spaar then asked for comments on the changes.  Mr. Ron West asked if the changes 
were submitted to the regulators; Dr. Carlson answered that they had received the changes.  Ms. Katie 
Hopkins read a statement from Ms. Micheline Burger (attached).  Mr. Jimmy Oyler stated that he had 
been on the RAB for 4 years and discussed a variety of subjects and his main concern is how much 
money has been spent and how many solid waste management units have been closed.  Ms. Hopkins 
stated that it would be hard for her to support less input in the future when her input in the past has 
not been taken seriously.  She then moved to keep the present charter, motion was seconded.  Mr. Bill 
Maasen stated that if the RAB votes to keep the current charter, then Mr. Spaar will have to notify his 
superiors. 

 
Mr. Spaar then summarized the three points that he had been advised to change in the charter – No 
voting on advice or opinions, selecting new members to fill vacancies, and limiting discussions to 
environmental restoration.  Discussions must be about ERA funded projects.  Mr. Spaar stated that if 
the RAB voted to keep the present charter the RAB would be operating against current Army RAB 
guidance and would be grounds for disbanding the RAB. 
 
Mr. Maasen confirmed that a quorum was present (16 RAB member, 9 needed for a quorum, 12 
present).  Vote on motion to keep the present charter 7 in favor, 2 opposed.  Motion passed. 
 

5. Mr. Oyler asked that the RAB members be listed separate from the guests on the attendance 
summary. 

 
6. Six vacancies on the RAB existed prior to Mr. Ron West’s resignation prior to the March 6, 2002 

RAB meeting.  Mr. West recommended Rex Burkhart as his replacement, however Mr. Burkhart did 
not have an application submitted by March 1, 2002.  It was determined that the previous vacancies 
(6) would be filled tonight, and Mr. West’s vacancy would be tabled until the next RAB. 

 
7. Former RAB Community Co-chair Johnna Lingle was presented with a plaque in appreciation of her 

work on the RAB. 
 
8. The following new RAB members were approved: 
 

David Rhodes   (replaced James Bush) 
Darrel Zimmerman  (replaced Merle Couch) 
Tom Price  (replaced George Crowder) 
Gifford Knapp  (replaced Johnna Lingle) 

 1



 

Charles Benjamin (replaced Alan Stevens) 
Jason Fizell  (replaced Eugene Tinberg) 
 

 
9. Mr. Spaar distributed a handout that summarizes the ERA eligible tasks that can be discussed at RAB 

meetings.  Ms. Hopkins asked for examples of what we can discuss and why we cannot discuss other 
topics.  It was explained by Mr. Spaar and Ms. Meier that topics for discussions must be ERA eligible 
because ERA funds pay for the RAB.  Ms. Hopkins then asked who could give the information on the 
other projects.  Mr. Spaar stated that he could provide the information, just not during the RAB 
meeting and that he has proposed that 30 minutes be set aside at the end of each RAB for non-IRP 
questions.  Mr. Maasen stated that the approach does not seem logical to the common man.  Mr. 
Milton Bland stated that the federal government sets up constraints so that the money is spent where 
the government intended for it to be spent.  Mr. Spaar and Ms. Meier gave several examples of types 
of funding and how that funding can be spent. 

 
10. The 2002 Installation Action Plan (IAP) was distributed to each RAB member prior to the start of the 

meeting.  Mr. Spaar summarized the contents.  He asked that the members note that SWMU 7 
includes work to be conducted at SWMUs 8 & 9.  The IAP indicated that SWMUs 8 & 9 are 
complete, however this is only from a funding standpoint and further work will be conducted at the 
sites.  Mr. Oyler asked how many SWMUs were present at SFAAP including the “new” SWMUs.  
Mr. Spaar responded that there are 52 SWMUs in DSERTS, 15 new SWMUs for consideration, and 
22 Areas of Concern (AOCs).  The 15 new SWMUs and 22 AOC have not been entered into 
DSERTS, and the Center for Health Promotion & Preventive Medicine (CHPPM) will conduct a 
relative risk screening of the sites.  It was also noted that SWMU 10 had been expanded.  Mr. Spaar 
pointed out that $17.9 million had been spent to date on investigation and cleanup at SFAAP.  Mr. 
Oyler asked if SWMU 21 was being taken care of this year.  Mr. Spaar answered that it will be 
funded in 2002 and the budget for 2002 was $3.2 million.  He also stated that the IAP estimated the 
total cost for the investigations, cleanup, long term monitoring (LTM) & long term operations (LTO) 
to be $74.3 million, and the completion date is estimated to be 2035.  The 2035 date is the date that 
all of the monitoring will be complete.  Mr. Oyler asked if the surface water investigation would be 
completed this year. Mr. Spaar stated that it will be funded with 2002 money.  Ms. Hopkins pointed 
out that the cleanup (without LTM) will be complete in 2011, Mr. Spaar stated that that date is the 
date for remedies in place (RIP) at the current proposed funding levels and that could change based 
on defense spending.  Mr. Spaar also noted the difference between the constrained and unconstrained 
budget spreadsheets, i.e., the constrained budget is based on current proposed funding levels and the 
unconstrained budget is based on how fast the projects could be completed if money was available. 

 
11. The IAP for 2003 is scheduled for March 26 through March 28 in Overland Park, Kansas.  Mr. Oyler 

said that he went last fall and would encourage RAB members to attend if possible.  Gifford Knapp 
will attend and Tom Price will be the alternate. 

 
12. Ms. Meier presented the update on the LTM activities.  The contract negotiations were finalized the 

morning of March 6, 2002, and field work should begin by May 2002.  Ms. Hopkins requested that 
updates in writing be handed out.   

 
13. Mr. Keith Walker presented the update on SWMUs 2, 18, and 32-35 (passed out summary handout).  

In reference to SWMU 2, Mr. Dean Palos asked why guanidine nitrate was present at the site.  Mr. 
Walker explained that the original mission for the site was changed, and the ponds were later used as 
settling ponds.  In reference to SWMU 18, Mr. Oyler asked when the cover was installed.  Mr. Spaar 
responded that as material was deposited in the landfill cells, it was covered with a layer of soil and 
that the site history was on page 18 of the IAP. Mr. Ken Herstowski responded that the cover was not 

 2



 

an engineered cover.  Mr. Oyler asked if it had been confirmed that there were no toxic substances in 
the landfill, Mr. Walker responded that there were not.  It was then discussed that this statement was 
based on information from the RCRA Facility Investigation (RFI) (i.e. monitoring well data around 
the landfill).  Mr. Oyler stated that he wanted the landfills cleaned up, but they were planed to just be 
capped.  In reference to SWMU 33-35, Mr. Bazookas asked if residential cleanup levels were being 
used at the site.  Mr. Walker responded that the Army’s mission was to cleanup to industrial 
standards, however the Army looks at cost benefits of cleaning up to residential (this includes the 
benefit of not having institutional controls at sites).  Mr. Oyler asked if the KDHE RSK values had 
been published, Dr. Randall Carlson stated that they had been.  Mr. Oyler asked whose values were 
being used, Mr. Spaar answered that the lowest of EPA or KDHE were being used.   

      
14. Mr. Shawn Blackshear with ATSDR stated that the public health assessment of SFAAP will be 

complete next week.  At that time he will provide copies to the RAB members and will bring copies 
to the next RAB meeting. 

 
15. Ms. Meier will try to have badges and table name tents for the new members.  Mr. Spaar will try to 

have the previous RAB members turn in their RAB notebooks so that the new members can use them.  
Mr. West suggested that all handouts have holes punched in them. 

 
16. Ms. Hopkins asked if the Roberts property was protected from the weather, Mr. Spaar responded that 

she should contact Mr. Smith for details. 
 
17. Mr. Spaar noted that Clearview City has offered their facility for future meetings and moved that the 

RAB accept the offer.  Mr. Maasen seconded the motion, and the motion passed. 
 
18. Mr. Spaar asked for agenda items for the next meeting. 
 

ATSDR Final Health Assessment Summary 
Updates on current status of ongoing IRP projects 
Replace resigning RAB member Ron West 
Update on IAP meeting 
 

19.  The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:45 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 3



 

 4



 

 

 5



 

 

 6



 

 

 7



 

 

 8


